

THE BYLAWS
of the
NATIONAL CAPITAL CHAPTER
of
SAFARI CLUB INTERNATIONAL

ARTICLE I
CORPORATE NAME

Section 1. Corporate Name and Acronym.

The name of this nonprofit corporation is the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International, and, when appropriate, may be designated by its own unique acronym, "NCC/SCI".

ARTICLE II
HEADQUARTERS OFFICES

Section 1. Location of Headquarters Offices.

The principal offices and places of business of the National Capital Chapter shall be at the offices of the current Chapter President and the current Chapter Secretary.

Section 2. State of Incorporation.

The National Capital Chapter is incorporated in the State of Virginia.

Section 3. Chapter Activities Under Supervision of SCI.

The National Capital Chapter of SCI is closely affiliated with and operates under and in conformance of with the Bylaws of Safari Club International (SCI). The NCC/SCI is subject to certain administrative and economic controls and mandates of SCI, and operates under the guidance of an SCI Regional Representative. [The SCI international headquarters is located at 4800 West Gates Pass Road, Tucson, AZ 85745; phone, (520) 620-1220, fax, (520) 622-1205].

ARTICLE III
GEOGRAPHICAL AREA OF COVERAGE

The geographic area of densest membership coverage, responsibility and jurisdiction for the National Capital Chapter of SCI includes Washington, DC and the States of Maryland, and Virginia, but the Chapter has members residing in other areas of the US and the world as well.

ARTICLE IV NON-PROFIT STATUS

The National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is a charitable and educational conservation organization of sportsmen and sportswomen, who contribute of their time and talent as volunteers. NCC/SCI operates as a non-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States of America (which provides a tax deduction for contributors).

ARTICLE V PURPOSES AND OBJECTIVES

The purposes, objectives and responsibilities of the NCC/SCI are:

1. To be affiliated with Safari Club International (SCI), to promote the goals and objectives of SCI, and to operate pursuant to the SCI Bylaws, but with particular reference to the provisions of Art. XIV of said Bylaws, that relate to SCI jurisdiction over chapters of the organization, and that require operation within the guidelines and directives established by the SCI Board of Directors.
2. To bond in membership with Safari Club International in a manner that requires all Chapter members to also be "members of SCI, Inc. and/or the SCI Foundation.
3. To provide a channel for organized efforts to promote a better public understanding and acceptance of sport hunting as an effective tool for wildlife conservation and management.
4. To collect, organize and distribute educational information and data regarding wildlife species of the world, and to provide information on hunting opportunities worldwide, but always in consonance with proper biological data, conservation practices, and local, regional, national and international laws, rules and regulations.
5. To participate and associate with other organizations throughout the world that share common goals, beliefs and purposes; and to acquire donations and disburse part of same to SCI, or to other organizations, governmental entities, or individuals pursuing the same or similar goals as those of SCI or the NCC/SCI.
6. To conduct at least one fund-raiser per year, and to donate 30% of the net proceeds thereof to the SCI General Fund. If for any reason the Chapter is unable to conduct the fund-raiser, then a \$2,000 minimum contribution to the SCI General Fund will fulfill the Chapter's financial obligation to the international organization for that year.

7. The President of the Chapter (or other designated representative of the Chapter) is required to attend and participate in at least one SCI Board meeting of the international organization each year.
8. To conduct at least quarterly Chapter meetings each year, although every effort will be made to schedule Chapter Board meetings on the third Wednesday evening of every odd-numbered month, and to conduct Chapter Member meetings on the third Wednesday evening of every even-numbered month.
9. To conduct at least one educational project annually (e.g., assist in sending a teacher or student to the American Wilderness Leadership School (AWLS) [or to a similar training program that may be conducted by any other conservation/wildlife organization with the same or similar objectives], for initial or more advanced training in wildlife management, conservation, wilderness survival techniques, firearms use and safety, game identification, safe hunting procedures, legal hunting seasons and bag limits, etc.; or to participate in SCI headquarters museum projects or programs, or similar museum projects of other organizations.
10. To conduct or participate in at least one local conservation project or program annually, or to fund a non-hunting-related project deemed to help promote positive community relations.
11. To submit an Annual Report to the Regional Representative prior to the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors and Annual Meeting of Members at the Annual Convention of SCI.
12. To submit a year-end financial statement to SCI headquarters in Tucson, AZ [to the attention of the Chapter Development Manager; with a copy to the Regional Representative] within a reasonable time after the close of the Chapter fiscal year, but in no event later than six months.
13. To maintain an active list of not less than 25 members in the Chapter, exercising continuing effort to increase the membership.
14. To engage in such other activities as may be appropriate in conjunction with the foregoing; and to schedule one or more hunting or shooting events per year for the members of the Chapter.

ARTICLE VI
MEMBERS, VOTING RIGHTS, AND OTHER RIGHTS

Membership in the Chapter, and classes of membership:

1. Dual Membership in both SCI and the Chapter. All members of the Chapter are also required to be members of SCI, and to pay the appropriate dues assessed by both the Chapter and by SCI. The annual Chapter dues are established by the Chapter Board of Directors.
2. Regular Member. A regular Member is a current member of the Chapter in good standing, and is eligible both to vote and to hold office in the Chapter, and to enjoy all the benefits of membership in SCI or the Chapter.
3. Spouse Non-Subscribing Member: A spouse who is a magazine-non-subscribing-member with SCI international at a discounted rate is nevertheless a regular member of the Chapter provided Chapter dues are paid in full, and is eligible both to vote and to hold office in the Chapter, and will enjoy all the benefits of membership of SCI or of the Chapter.
4. Youth Member. For purposes of Chapter dues and privileges, a Youth Member is a person 18 years of age or under, living with one or both parents, is unemployed, and is still attending school or college. The Chapter Board of Directors establishes Chapter dues for Youth Members, which may be regular, reduced or fully excused.
5. Qualifications: To be eligible for membership, a person must be of good moral character, current in the payment of dues, fees and assessments, and must agree to promote the purposes of SCI and of the Chapter, who habitually exercises wildlife conservation principles, and has adopted a Sportsmen's Code of Ethics such as the following SCI Code:

SCI HUNTER'S CODE OF ETHICS

"Recognizing my responsibilities to wildlife, to habitat and to future generations, I pledge:

To conduct myself in the field so as to make a positive contribution to wildlife and ecosystems.

To improve my skills as a woodsman and marksman so as to insure humane harvesting of wildlife.

To comply with all game laws, in the spirit of fair chase, and to influence my companions to do the same.

To accept my responsibility to provide all possible assistance to game law enforcement officers.

To waste no opportunity to teach young people the full meaning of this: Code of Ethics.

To reflect in word and behavior only credit upon the fraternity of sportsmen, and to demonstrate abiding respect for game, habitat and property where I am privileged to hunt."

6. Application for Membership. If required, all applications for Chapter membership must be in writing on a form specified by the Board of Directors.

7. Voting Rights. Each Chapter member in good standing is entitled to one vote on every matter submitted for a vote of the members; however, neither proxy voting nor cumulative voting are ever allowed.

8. Certificate of Membership. A Chapter Certificate of Membership, in such form as the Directors may prescribe, may be issued to an applicant upon election to membership, signed by the Chapter President and the Secretary.

9. Transfer of Membership. A new member to the Chapter must pay the regular prescribed Chapter dues on a pro-rata basis for the remaining months of the fiscal year.

10. Initiation Fees and Dues. Initiation fees, dues, and special assessments for Chapter members, if any, shall be established by the Chapter Board of Directors and be approved by the membership at the Annual Meeting of Members.

11. Delinquent Dues. Delinquent Annual dues are due and payable upon receipt of the billing from SCI Dues. A member will be delinquent if full payment is not made within 60 days of the member's anniversary date. Any member who becomes delinquent for more than 60 days will be dropped from the membership.

12. Voluntary Termination of Membership. Any member may resign by filing with the Chapter her or his written resignation. Dues paid in advance by such resigning member shall not be refunded nor prorated. The resignation shall not relieve the resigning member from the obligation to pay dues, fees or special assessments that have accrued to the date of resignation and remain unpaid.

13. Expulsion, Suspension, Censure or Reprimand.

(a) Any member in default in payment of dues shall be terminated from membership with loss of all privileges of membership.

(b) Any action of the Chapter Board of Directors involving expulsion,

suspension for any period of time, censure, or reprimand must be done strictly in conformance with the provisions on involuntary termination outlined in great detail in Article V, Section 13 of the Bylaws of Safari Club International, which provisions are hereby incorporated into and made a full part of these Chapter Bylaws as though written in full herein. Such disciplinary action may be instituted for (1) any cause or conduct that is contrary to or in violation of these Chapter Bylaws, the Bylaws or Code of Ethics of SCI; or (2) having obtained membership in SCI by a material false or misleading statement; or (3), without limitation, any conduct that is disruptive of the orderly operation of this Chapter or SCI in the pursuit of their goals; or (4) willfully making false statements, misrepresentations, or otherwise violating one's obligation of loyalty to this Chapter or to SCI and their objectives; or (5) for any other good cause in the opinion of SCI or Chapter Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII MEETINGS

1. Order of Business.

The order of business at Chapter meetings shall be as follows:

- (a) Roll call
- (b) Reading and approval of the minutes of the previous meeting
- (c) Additions to the Agenda
- (d) Reports of Officers
- (e) Filling of vacancies, conducting of prescribed elections
- (f) Reports of Committees, including Committee Resolutions
- (g) Special Orders
- (h) General Orders and Unfinished Business
- (i) New Business
- (j) Other Resolutions
- (k) Announcements
- (l) Adjournment

This order of business may be modified by an affirmative vote of two-thirds vote of the members present.

2. General Membership Meetings.

A regular meeting of the members shall be held on the third Wednesday evening of every even-numbered month. The Secretary of the Chapter shall give each member of record written notice of the time, place and purpose of each regular member meeting at least seven days before the date scheduled for the meeting.

3. Special Membership Meetings.

The Chapter President and Board of Directors may call a special meeting of the members for any purpose deemed appropriate. The Secretary of the Chapter shall give each member of record written notice of the purpose, the time and place of the special meeting at least seven days before the scheduled date of the special meeting.

4. Notice of Meetings.

Electronic notice of the time, place and purpose of a meeting shall be deemed delivered the day following the date transmitted. Mailed notices shall be deemed delivered five days after they are deposited in the US mail, addressed to each member at her or his address of record with SCI, with postage thereon fully paid.

5. Annual Membership Meeting for the Election of Directors.

There shall be an Annual Meeting of Members in April of each year, unless the Board of Directors shall designate a different election date for a particular year, at which new Directors will be elected to the Chapter Board of Directors for a one-year term, to commence on the following July 1st.

6. Quorum at a Meeting of Members.

At any regular or special meeting of members, proper notice having been given to all members of record, the members attending the meeting shall constitute a quorum.

7. Votes Required to Determine any Question.

A majority of votes cast at a meeting is required to determine any question before the body, and shall be deemed to be a decision of the full body, unless a greater percentage of votes is required by these Bylaws, or, in the absence of any such Bylaws provision, by the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, or by any applicable state or federal law or regulation, because of the nature and import of the specific question upon which the vote is being taken.

ARTICLE VIII
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Number of Directors serving on the Chapter Board.

There shall be not more than eight (8) members on the Chapter Board of Directors elected annually at the Annual Meeting of Members.

2. Term of Office.

The Directors are elected for a term of one fiscal year (or until their successors are elected and qualified.)

3. Duties and Responsibilities.

The property, affairs, business, and policies of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International are managed by the Chapter Board of Directors.

4. Vacancies.

Vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors then in office.

5. Quorum at a Meeting of the Board of Directors.

At any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, proper notice having been given, a majority of Officers and Directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business; however, the quorum may not be composed of less than three (3) Directors. A majority of the quorum present and voting on any matter shall be the act of the Board, unless, because of the nature or import of the specific question upon which the vote is being taken, a greater percentage of votes is otherwise required by these Bylaws; or, in the absence of any such Bylaws provision, by the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, or by any applicable state or federal law or regulation. In the absence of a quorum, any business transacted is null and void. The absence of a quorum cannot be waived even by unanimous consent; however, a quorum is always presumed unless the chair or any member of the Board present makes a point of order that a quorum is not present, in which event the chair may elect to recess the meeting from time to time until a quorum is available, or adjourn the meeting.

6. Notice to Directors of Meetings of the Board.

Notice of the date, time and place of regular Board meetings may be established by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board, with notices or reminders made by mail, telephone, fax, or other means, at the Director's official address of record with SCI. Notice of special meetings shall state the purpose of the meeting, as well as the date, time, and place of the meeting, and be transmitted at least 48-hours prior to the meeting, which notice may be mail (if adequate time allows), or by telephone, fax, or other means. If sent by mail, said notice shall be deemed delivered two days after mailing; if transmitted by telephone, by fax, or in person, the notice shall be deemed delivered on the same day. Attendance of a Director shall constitute a waiver of notice, unless the sole purpose of attending was to object to the transaction of any business at the meeting on the ground that notice was inadequate or insufficient, or that the meeting was unnecessary or improperly called.

7. Compensation.

Directors shall not receive any compensation for their services as a member of the Board of Directors. Nothing, however, shall prevent any Director from serving SCI or the Chapter in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor, if appropriate and if approved by the full Board of Directors.

8. Reimbursement of Authorized Expenses.

All claims for reimbursement of expenses shall be made in writing to the Treasurer. The Board of Directors must approve the payment of expenses claimed by a member, Officer or Director.

ARTICLE IX OFFICERS

1. The Officers, elected by and from the Board of Directors, are as follows:
 - The President
 - The Vice President or Vice Presidents
 - The Secretary
 - The Treasurer
2. The Officers of the NCC/SCI are elected for a term of one year, beginning 1 July of each year. Not more than one office may be held at the same time by the same person; however, any Officer may be re-elected to succeed herself or himself in office more than once, except the President, who may not serve more than one additional continuous term, but is eligible to seek that office again thereafter. Chapter Officers shall also retain their positions as Directors on the Chapter Board of Directors during their term in office.

ARTICLE X ELECTION OF OFFICERS

1. Chapter Officers Elected by and from the Chapter Board of Directors.
On the third Wednesday in May, the Chapter Officers shall be elected by and from the Chapter Board of Directors by majority vote; however, the new Officers do not take office until the following July 1st.
2. Secret Ballot.
If more than one candidate is nominated for any office, the election will take place by secret paper ballot.
3. Duties and Powers of Chapter Officers.
 - A. President: The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Chapter, and, subject to the authority of the Board of Directors, shall have general supervision and control of the Chapter's affairs. The President (1) shall preside at all meetings of the Board and of the members; (2) may, with the Secretary or any other proper Officer designated by the Board, sign any contracts, notes, or other legal instruments authorized by the Chapter Board of Directors; (3) call special meetings of the Board when necessary, and after having given all members of the Board proper notice of the purpose, date, and time of said meeting; or call special member meetings when authorized by the Board to do so; and (4) shall be the principal director of activities at Chapter meetings and events.

B. Vice President. In the absence of the President, or in the event of the disability or refusal of the President to serve or at, the duties of the President shall be performed by the Vice President. The Vice President shall perform such duties as the President or the Board of Directors may assign to him or her.

C. Secretary. The Secretary shall provide notice of all meetings to the Board and to the membership; shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board or of the members; shall be the custodian of the official records of the Chapter; shall keep a permanent record of the addresses, phone, fax, e-mail, and web numbers of addresses of each member of the Chapter; be historian of official activities of the Chapter; conduct correspondence for the Chapter; read relevant correspondence and other communications at all meetings of the Board of Directors or of the members; and perform such other duties as the President or the Board of Directors may assign.

C. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall (1) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds, accounts, and securities of the Chapter from all sources, and shall deposit all such monies in the name of the Chapter in such depositories as the Board may designate; (2) keep a complete record of all Chapter income and expenditures; (3) receive and give receipts for money due and payable to the Chapter; (4) pay all just obligations of the Chapter upon approval of the Board of Directors {Any bill or claim exceeding \$1,000 shall require dual signatures, including the Treasurer and one other officer}; (5) report to the Chapter Directors on the financial condition of the Chapter every month; (6) at the Annual Meeting of the Members, make a complete report of the financial condition of the Chapter for the immediately-preceding fiscal year; (7) assume responsibility for the filing of all relevant government tax and financial reports annually; (8) advise the Board of Directors regarding proper and improper activities with reference to retaining the Chapter income tax status as a Section 501(c)(3) tax-deductible organization; and (9) perform other such duties as may be assigned by the President or the Chapter Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XI COMMITTEES

1. Standing Committees.

The Standing Committees of the Chapter are as follows:

- a. Nominating, Elections, and Bylaws
- b. Membership
- c. Fund-Raising (including Annual Banquet activities)
- d. Finance and Contributions to SCI (Treasurer, Chairman)
- e. Sables [for women members affiliated with SCI Sables Division]
- f. Publications and Public Affairs (including Chapter Newsletter)
- g. Chapter Activities (hunting, sport shooting, outdoor events, sensory safaris for the blind, etc.)
- h. Education and Conservation Programs

2. Special Committees

The President or the Board of Directors shall create such special committees as deemed necessary or desirable to serve the best interests of the Chapter. Each special committee shall remain in existence only until the tasks of that special committee have been completed, or until the term of the appointing President is completed.

3. Chairmen of Committees Appointed by the President.

With the exception of the Nominating Committee, whose Chairman shall be selected by the Board of Directors, the President, by and with the consent of the Board, shall appoint the chairmen of all committees from the General Membership Members or the Board of Directors as the President deems appropriate.

ARTICLE XII NOMINATING COMMITTEE and ELECTION of the BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Chapter Board of Directors, shall appoint a Nominating Committee of three members of the Board or of the Chapter members at-large, or a combination of both, for the nomination of Directors to fill vacancies that will occur at the end of each fiscal year.

2. The Nominating Committee will (a) select nominees from the Chapter membership for the office of Director, (b) check qualifications of all prospective nominees, then (c) present a list of nominees in a report to the full Board by March 1st of each year for an election at the following Annual Meeting of Members on the third Wednesday evening of April. Either before or during such Annual Meeting of Members, prior to the scheduled elections, a candidate may: be nominated by petition submitted in writing to the Secretary that contains no less than 15 member signatures in support of the candidate. At the opening of the election process for each office at the Annual Meeting of Members, the chair will entertain nominations from the floor for additional candidates.

ARTICLE XII BYLAWS AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation for the Chapter may be amended, completely revised, or repealed by a two-thirds affirmative vote of the Board of Directors or by a two-thirds affirmative vote of the members at the Annual Meeting of Members, provided:

a. In the case of amendments proposed by petition by no less than 20 Chapter members at large, or proposed by no less than two members of the Board of Directors, said proposed amendment or amendments must be submitted in writing to each member of the Board at least twenty (20) days prior to Board consideration; and if such proposed amendment is to be considered for adoption at the Annual Meeting of Members, it must first be submitted to the Board for recommendation and must also be sent in writing to every member of the Chapter by special mailing at their address of record not less than twenty (20) days prior to consideration at the Annual Meeting.

b. Notice of proposed specific amendments to the Bylaws shall not preclude further amendments or substitutes being made from the floor that are germane to the proposed amendment. [To be germane, the amendment must be closely related to or have bearing on, or in some way involve the same question as the motion to which it is applied; but, nevertheless, an amendment can be hostile to or even reverse the spirit and purpose of the motion, and still be germane.] (Thus, a motion to strike put the word "censure" and insert the word "commend", although obviously antagonistic to the original intent, is germane, and in order). In borderline cases when the presiding officer finds it difficult to decide the germaneness of an amendment, the chair may refer the decision to the assembly.

c. Any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation or to these Bylaws adopted by the Board or by the members at an Annual Meeting must be distributed by mail to all Chapter members of record within 30 days.

ARTICLE XIII FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the National Capital Chapter begins the first second after midnight on December 31st and ends at midnight on the following December 31st. The Chapter fiscal year coincides with that of SCI.

ARTICLE XIV ANNUAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors shall select an accounting firm to annually review the books of account and statement of financial position prior to each annual election.

ARTICLE XV RULES OF ORDER

The latest edition of "Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised" shall govern all deliberations at meeting of the Board or of the members, unless these Bylaws provide otherwise. However, the regular order of business shall not be required in official meetings conducted by telephone conference calls of

the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XVI PROPERTY RIGHTS

No member, Officer or Director shall have any rights, title, or interest in any of the assets or property of the Chapter, except for a right to make use thereof as a member in accordance with authority approved by the Chapter Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XVII DISSOLUTION

1. Property and Assets Conveyed by Gift to Tax-Exempt Organizations.

Upon liquidation, discontinuance, dissolution, or abandonment of the corporation, all or part of the property and assets of the Chapter may be transferred or conveyed by the Board of Directors by way of gift to one or more domestic or foreign corporations, foundations, associations, societies or organizations that are exempt from both US federal and state income taxes and property taxation under Section 501(c)(3) or (c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States of America, and are engaged in activities substantially similar to those of this Chapter. Such transfer or conveyance shall be accomplished in accordance with the laws of Virginia (the State of Incorporation) that pertains to the liquidation, dissolution, or the abandonment of such corporations.

2. No Transfer to any Individual Except for True Value on Competitive Bid.

In no event shall any property or assets of the Chapter be conveyed or transferred to any individual upon the liquidation, abandonment or the dissolution of the corporation, except for valuable consideration at fair market value, upon competitive bid, and then only upon approval of the Chapter Board of Directors.

3. Appointment of Successor Trustee.

In the event of dissolution, and in the further event of an existing trust indenture wherein the Chapter is trustee, and there remain unperformed duties, or funds due for payment by the Chapter under a trust provision, and the said Trust Agreement does not contain a provision giving the Chapter the power to appoint a successor trustee upon dissolution, the Chapter is authorized to make application to any court of competent jurisdiction in Virginia, or in any other State designated by the trust indenture, for the appointment of a successor trustee to administer such fund.

CERTIFICATE OF PRESIDENT AND SECRETARY
of the
NATIONAL CAPITAL CHAPTER
of
SAFARI CLUB INTERNATIONAL

We, the undersigned Officers of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International, certify that we are duly elected and are the current President and Secretary of the aforementioned nonprofit corporation, and that the foregoing Bylaws, consisting of 14 pages, constitute the Bylaws of the said SCI Chapter, and that said Bylaws, after adoption, were or immediately will be distributed by mail to all current members of the NCC/SCI; and we further certify that the Board of Directors, after due notice, unanimously approved and adopted said Bylaws for the National Capital Chapter at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

18 November 1999
Fairfax, Virginia

Ronald A. Pitts President
Robert B. Tinker Secretary

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS
OF THE
NATIONAL CAPITAL CHAPTER
OF
SAFARI CLUB INTERNATIONAL

Enacted at a Meeting of the Board of Directors held in Fairfax, Virginia May 21 2003.

RESOLVED, that Article VIII, Paragraph 4 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended to include the following sentences after the first full sentence of Article VIII, Paragraph 4:

"At any time the President or in his/her absence, the Vice President, may ask the Board of Directors to declare any Board position to be vacant. This vacancy will be official upon a majority vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors will then elect a member of the Board to any Chapter Officer vacancy that may result from the approved declaration."

RESOLVED, that Article VI, Paragraph13 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International be amended to include the following sentences after the first full sentence of Article VI, Paragraph13:

"The use of the name National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International, or membership in the Chapter, will not be used in connection with any business, or social, or other enterprise, without permission of the Board of Directors. In the event that time does not allow for review and approval by the Board of Directors, interim approval may be granted by the President or in his/her absence, the Vice President."

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS
OF THE
NATIONAL CAPITAL CHAPTER
OF
SAFARI CLUB INTERNATIONAL

Enacted at a Meeting of the Board of Directors held in Fairfax, Virginia May 19, 2010.

RESOLVED that Article II, Section 2 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Replace “The National Capital Chapter is incorporated in the State of Virginia” with “The National Capital Chapter is incorporated in the District of Columbia”

RESOLVED that Article VI of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Add Paragraph 2(a) “Life Member – A Life Member of Safari Club International is eligible to become a life member of the National Capital Chapter. Chapter Life Members are members in good standing, and are eligible to vote and to hold office in the Chapter, and to enjoy all of the benefits of membership in SCI and the Chapter. The Chapter Board of Directors establishes the Chapter Life Member Dues. In the case of Dissolution of the Chapter, no portion of the Chapter Life Member Dues will be returned or repaid to the Chapter Life Member.”

RESOLVED that Article VI, Paragraph 9 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Replace Paragraph with “A new member to the Chapter must pay the regular prescribed Chapter dues in full and will receive a full year of Chapter membership. There will be no pro-rated Chapter dues.”

RESOLVED that Article VII, Paragraph 1 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Replace the first line of text with “The order of business at Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be as follows:”

RESOLVED that Article VII, Paragraph 2 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Replace paragraph with the following: “A regular meeting of the members shall be held on the third Wednesday evening of every even-numbered month. The Secretary or President of the Chapter shall send each member of record with a valid email address an email notice of the time, place and purpose of each regular meeting at least seven days before the date scheduled for the meeting. The meeting date and time shall also be shown on the Chapter website for access by those members of record without valid email accounts on record.”

RESOLVED that Article VIII, Paragraph 6 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Replace the first sentence of the paragraph with the following: “Notice of the date, time, and place of regular Board meetings may be established by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board, with notices or reminders made by email at the Director’s official email address of record with SCI or other means such as the Chapter Website.”

RESOLVED that Article IX Paragraph 2 of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Add the following sentence to the end of the paragraph. “If agreed to by the Board and the outgoing President, the outgoing President may serve a 1-year non-voting advisory role. This role will be known as Past President.”

RESOLVED that Article XIII – Fiscal Year - of the Bylaws of the National Capital Chapter of Safari Club International is amended as follows:

Strike the first sentence of the paragraph. The paragraph in its entirety will read, “The Chapter Fiscal Year coincides with that of SCI.”